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 1                                   1:30 o'clock p.m.


                                     April 21, 2023


 2                        -  -  -


 3               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  It is 1:30 on


 4   April 21st, and I call to order the Indiana Civil


 5   Rights Commission.  Just a note, by state


 6   statute, we have to have three Commissioners


 7   present.  We only have two today.  We do have


 8   Comm. Jackson, Silberberg and Blackburn on the


 9   phone, so for today's meeting, we will continue,


10   but we will not have the ability to approve any


11   votes today.


12          And so, with that, I'll turn it over to


13   Deputy Director Fleischhacker to review the


14   agenda.


15               MR. WILSON:  Oh, the agenda?  Oh,


16   review of the agenda.


17               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Oh, Michael is


18   going to do that.


19               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Yeah.  Just -- we'll


20   have the approval of previous meeting minutes, we


21   will have the Director's Report, then we would --


22   normally we'd have Old Business.  We cannot do


23   that, lacking a quorum, so we would move on,
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 1   then, to appointing Commissioners to


 2   Complainants' Appeals of Director's Findings, and


 3   also deal with the two motions that are also


 4   before the court, as that is something that we


 5   need either Chair or Vice-Chair approval on.  And


 6   then we cannot vote on the review of the ALJ


 7   Decisions and Orders; however, we can go ahead


 8   and read in the final orders that were


 9   automatically confirmed by the ALJ.


10               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.


11               MR. LOSTUTTER:  You're welcome.


12               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  So, following the


13   agenda, it is -- we just announced the agenda, so


14   next would be the approval of the minutes, but


15   because we do not have a quorum, we cannot


16   approve the minutes, so we will defer that to our


17   next session, and that takes us the ICRC


18   Director's Report.


19               MR. WILSON:  Thank you, Vice-Chair


20   Ramos.  Thank you, Commissioners.  Again, for


21   those on the screen, this is Greg Wilson,


22   Executive Director, Indiana Civil Rights


23   Commission.
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 1          Some of you hopefully got to attend the


 2   panel discussions.  I thought they were great.


 3   We did the first panel yesterday, and our next


 4   panel is on the 24th at 2:00 o'clock, and we


 5   would hope that you would join us.  We have -- I


 6   think these representatives are going to be from


 7   Ohio, and then also from IHCDA --


 8               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  (Nodded yes.)


 9               MR. WILSON:  -- and then also our own


10   Deputy Director and General Counsel, David, will


11   be on there as well, and so, we think it'll be a


12   great panel discussion.  This is Fair Housing


13   Month, and so, during Fair Housing Month we try


14   to make sure that we put a lot of information out


15   to further fair housing.


16          So, coming up besides that, we are working


17   on our conference.  That's coming up Juneteenth.


18   It's three days.  Actually the first day is our


19   reception, and the next two days are days of


20   workshops.  The third day is not only the days of


21   workshops, but our dinner as well, so we're


22   excited about that.  Hopefully -- if you are


23   interested in attending, please let Michael know
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 1   that you're interested in attending the


 2   conference.


 3          And we'll make sure, Michael, that we send


 4   them the link to the conference.


 5          So, Michael will send that to all of the


 6   Commissioners, the link to the conference.


 7          And then one of the big highlights of this


 8   year, we're turning 60, and I'm talking about


 9   ICRC.  We're turning 60 years old, this is our


10   60th year, and we're going to celebrate.  We


11   haven't got to that point yet because we're still


12   stuck on the conference, but during the


13   conference we'll talk about 60 years and what it


14   means here for us here at ICRC to celebrate


15   the 60th year.  So, just know we're turning 60,


16   and we're not bad looking for 60.


17               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  All right.


18               MR. WILSON:  And then I'll let David


19   go through kind of the --


20               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.  Thanks.


21               MR. WILSON:  -- the monthly report.


22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.


23          Just an update on some of the various


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 7


 1   projects that we have going on that we talked


 2   about in prior meetings.  We have the Genesis


 3   phone system.  As has been reported previously,


 4   it continues to be a great tool for us to


 5   utilize, and it positions us to be better able to


 6   collect information on the work that our staff


 7   are doing.


 8          Just as a kind of comparison, as you may


 9   have seen in the At-a-Glance numbers for this


10   past month, you know, in March 2023, we recorded


11   979 calls that came in on our 1-800 number and


12   the 2600, the 317-232-2600 numbers into our


13   office during the month of March.


14          That's compared to hand counting 155 calls


15   a year ago in March.  So, I'm sure that we


16   received more than 155 calls last March, but we


17   didn't have nearly the excellent capacity that we


18   have now to track the work that is being done, so


19   our staff are doing a great job of working with


20   that.


21          We're also working with our -- with IOT


22   and with the vendor to continue to build upon


23   what's already in place for Genesis.  We're
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 1   looking at the feasibility of adding a directory


 2   of staff numbers, when somebody calls in and


 3   wants to get directly to some -- one person, or


 4   maybe after hours have a -- leave a voicemail for


 5   a particular individual.


 6          So, we're exploring some things like that


 7   to make the system even more user friendly, both


 8   for callers that call in, but also for our staff


 9   as well, because then that may direct some


10   callers to a specific staff member instead of


11   going through the queues and taking time to do


12   all of that.


13          Our CMS, our Case Management System, is


14   continuing to be enhanced.  Right now we're


15   working very hard on developing the capacity to


16   generate Power BI reports, so -- and creating


17   things like our monthly reports for the


18   Commission.  Our staff are going to be able to go


19   right into CMS and have a lot of those things


20   automatically generated for them instead of


21   having to do things by hand and through Excel


22   spreadsheets, things of that nature.  So, a lot


23   of enhancements continue to be done with that.
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 1          We're trying to fully integrate DocuSign


 2   into the Case Management System so that if we


 3   have documents that need to be sent out to


 4   complainants or respondents or whomever to be


 5   signed, then we can do that automatically through


 6   the Case Management System, they go out, and then


 7   hopefully get those signed documents returned in


 8   a very timely manner.


 9          And then right now we're in the midst of


10   doing fair housing testing.  We have a


11   partnership with the IHCDA, the Indiana Housing


12   and Community Development Authority, and then


13   also some funding from HUD through some


14   partnership funds, to do some directed testing on


15   properties across the State of Indiana, and


16   testing on a couple of different things.


17          So, right now we're in the midst of that,


18   so as those results come in, then they may


19   generate some Director-initiated complaints


20   regarding if there's some significant differences


21   in how the testers were treated versus -- you


22   know, the protected tester versus the


23   nonprotected tester.  So, there's some various
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 1   projects that we have going on.


 2          As far as some metrics go, you can see on


 3   the At-a-Glance that our March numbers and our


 4   year-to-date numbers are much higher than they


 5   have been in prior -- you know, just a year ago.


 6   To give you some further, I guess, examples of


 7   that, for year-to-date numbers for 2023, you can


 8   see that the number of calls that we have


 9   recorded are well over 2,000, as compared to 574


10   calls that we had calculated March, year-to-date,


11   in 2022.


12          For inquiries, we're at 649 so far


13   in 2023, as compared to 420 over the same time


14   period in 2022.  Complaints, we're at 327 versus


15   126 in 2022, so almost 200 more complaints in


16   just a three-month time period.


17          And then in settlement figures, in 2023,


18   we've already resolved -- by just through the end


19   of March, we have resolved cases that resulted


20   in $372,500 in monetary relief for complainants,


21   compared to just over 150,000 in the same time


22   period of 2022.  So, a lot of great work that's


23   going on from our staff.
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 1          There -- I think some of the technological


 2   improvements that we've done, and then just some


 3   staff longevity and being better positioned and


 4   more knowledgeable and skillful in how they do


 5   things has enabled us to meet the demands that


 6   are coming in.


 7          We don't file the complaints, they come in


 8   to us, but we're able to process them in a more


 9   timely manner, get them turned around and


10   investigated in a more timely manner, and prevent


11   them from being aged because we're moving them


12   along quickly.  So, a lot of great work for our


13   staff.


14               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  That's great.  I


15   commend the Commission for the great work that


16   you're doing.  Certainly having stuff turnover


17   causes all kinds of challenges, and the fact that


18   you've been able to actually grow staff and


19   retain is huge.  It really says a lot about the


20   Executive Director and Deputy Director, and all


21   of that trickles up.  So, my congrats to you.


22          The numbers are impressive.  My background


23   is in technology, so I'm a big plus on that, and
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 1   it does have an impact on productivity, and


 2   oftentimes they also correlate that to lack of


 3   losing people, right, because, you know,


 4   productivity.  But in this case, you know, it


 5   hasn't been that way, so congratulations --


 6               MR. WILSON:  Just to add to --


 7               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- to all.


 8               MR. WILSON:  Just to add to that, one


 9   of the things, too, I think the confidence from


10   the public in us has increased as more -- as we


11   get the word out about our agencies, who we are.


12          And then the turnaround of our staff and


13   some of the things that Dave has instituted with


14   his staff, making sure that we stay in contact


15   with those complainants and make sure that, you


16   know, that communication's there.  That's very


17   important.


18          And then the marketing campaign that we


19   did last year, we think that had a strong impact


20   out in the community.  We target specific areas


21   to market in, and some who were in some of those


22   faraway areas where complaints might exist, and I


23   just think that we've done a really good job of
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 1   communicating to the public.  And we have a great


 2   External Affairs team that has done a remarkable


 3   job using social media platforms, and then also


 4   working with community partners.


 5          So, I think, as an agency overall, we have


 6   a strong team.  Well, as I said, with intake I


 7   like to always lift them up, because initially


 8   when I got here, we had a very weak intake


 9   department, and we couldn't process the


10   complainants like we could today, and that's


11   because of Christiana's leadership and her


12   building a strong team.


13          Without intake, we couldn't push this


14   stuff through, and we're getting a lot -- we're


15   getting a lot of cases now.  We're getting quite


16   a few cases, and so, I appreciate Christiana and


17   her team, the intake team, for what they do.  We


18   just have a great department.


19          And Comm. Ramos, you've been here a long


20   time, and especially you were here when I first


21   started here at the agency, and so, you know


22   what's -- and also you, Comm. Blackburn, you


23   know, it was in rough shape, and thanks to all of
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 1   the talent that has come through, and we continue


 2   to build.  When people come, they left something


 3   to build on, and so, we're just excited about


 4   where we are today as a civil rights agency.


 5          So, as we go into the 60th year, I'm very


 6   excited about the possibilities.  Whether I'm


 7   here or not, we've built a strong platform for us


 8   to build on, so --


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Well, and you --


10   again, congratulations on that, but it also


11   translates across the country, right, because the


12   work that you're doing, I know people are always


13   looking at what others are doing, and the close


14   association with the others.  And the fact that


15   your session this summer is open nationally --


16               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.


17               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- that's just


18   fantastic, so great job.


19               MR. WILSON:  Well, Stephanie, who is


20   our Director of External -- Internal and External


21   Programming, one of her tasks is to work with


22   other regional partners and those around the


23   country.  If you look yesterday at our meeting,
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 1   we had people from Rhode Island and some other


 2   places attending our panel discussion, and we've


 3   built a good reputation throughout the region


 4   with our regional partners.


 5               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  It was a good


 6   session yesterday, and there were other


 7   Commissions that were on that as well, but it


 8   is -- and as much as you've indicated, I've been


 9   here for a while, and as has Comm. Blackburn, but


10   it's still interesting to see the pieces that


11   come up, that you're like, "Dang."  I don't know


12   a better word to say but just that, but what


13   happens in other areas, that if it continues


14   in 2023, it's just sad.  But the good news is the


15   work we're doing is making an impact.


16               MR. WILSON:  Well, we've never had


17   this kind of talent, though, at once.  We had


18   bits and pieces of, you know, strong talent, but


19   for the first time since I've been here, we have


20   a strong team all across the board, and couldn't


21   do it without this strong team.


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Right.


23          Commissioners, any comments or discussion?
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 1               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I just had a couple


 2   of questions.  You said that you've got calls


 3   from all over.  Is there a heat map somewhere,


 4   just to see where calls are coming from?


 5               MR. WILSON:  Yeah -- well, you're


 6   talking about a heat map?  Not a heat map.


 7               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  We just have a


 8   list of -- based on what they've submitted as


 9   part of their registration, where they were


10   calling in from, so we just have that data based


11   on --


12               MR. WILSON:  Yes.


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- participants


14   from the --


15               MR. WILSON:  Yeah, it shows where


16   they're watching from, like some are from Ohio.


17               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Oh, I'm sorry; the


18   calls that come in with complaints.


19               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Oh, you're


20   talking about for our call system?


21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yes.


22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  We don't like


23   have a heat map, but once we -- once they get
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 1   turned into like an inquiry and complaint, then


 2   we track where they're calling from, and so,


 3   we'll -- we're going to have a better


 4   understanding of kind of where regionally, and


 5   even by ZIP Code, you know, where complaints are


 6   coming in from or where complaints are not coming


 7   in from.  So, as we continue to build a more


 8   robust data set, we'll be able to kind of dig in


 9   and see some of those things, and that's going to


10   direct some of our external outreach --


11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.


12               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- you know,


13   where do we need to go to reach people, things of


14   that nature.  There are -- you know, we do have


15   some limitations as far as some advertisements,


16   because there's some local fair housing


17   organizations in some areas, so we're -- based on


18   our HUD agreements, we're not permitted to


19   advertise in some of those areas, so we have to


20   be mindful of some of those things, but other


21   than that, we're trying to reach our full


22   jurisdiction and get people to come to us that


23   need to come to us.
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 1               MR. WILSON:  Yeah, we do know where


 2   regional complaints are coming from.


 3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yeah, because that's


 4   what I was thinking, that -- I assume that


 5   Indianapolis and the doughnuts you get a lot of


 6   complaints, just because --


 7               MR. WILSON:  Yes.


 8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  -- the Commission's


 9   more well known here, but I don't know about some


10   of those -- and I didn't even think about that.


11   You get up to Lake County, that's probably


12   handled by Chicago.


13               MR. WILSON:  No.


14               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  No, because it's


15   still Indiana.


16               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Oh, so there's not a


17   club up there that says, "We want this"?


18               MR. WILSON:  Well, they're not in


19   Indiana.


20               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.


21               MR. WILSON:  Our statute, we do all


22   of Indiana.


23               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah.
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 1               MR. WILSON:  So, we can't -- and then


 2   the big thing is we do -- even right now, like


 3   David said, at some point we'll use the data the


 4   way that we need to, but right now, we work in


 5   various cities across the state.  With our


 6   marketing campaigns we'll do it here, we can do


 7   it here, but our goal is to partner with people,


 8   helping to push out information about ICRC.


 9               COMM. TOLLIVER:  And can I ask what


10   the difference is between a call and an inquiry?


11               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.  A call is


12   just tracked -- you know, if somebody calls in to


13   the 1-800 number or to the 2600 number, that's


14   counted as a call.


15          An inquiry -- and those calls can be


16   somebody calling in to say, you know, "I have an


17   issue with, you know, a police officer," which,


18   you know, is not going to be our jurisdiction.


19   We're not going to make that into an inquiry.


20          An inquiry is more based on -- it might be


21   something that we would have jurisdiction over,


22   so we'd start looking into that and try to


23   establish whether we have jurisdiction over it.
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 1   So, those inquiries, those that we do have


 2   jurisdiction over and those that we eventually


 3   get a signed complaint back from a complainant,


 4   then those are what would turn into a formalized


 5   complaint.


 6               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.  That's all.


 7   Thank you.


 8               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yep.


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Are there any other


10   comments or questions from the Commissioners on


11   the phone?


12                     (No response.)


13               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll


14   move on to the next element in the agenda.  That


15   is Old Business, and as was previously discussed,


16   we can't do any motions because we don't have a


17   quorum on site, so we will skip that and move to


18   New Business.


19          There are four cases in the new


20   complaints, and so, I will read them in and then


21   assign them accordingly.  So, the first one is


22   Ajahnique Evans versus Pedcor Affordable


23   Investments, LLC, HOra22100558.  I will assign
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 1   that to myself.


 2          The next case is Shantana Maxwell versus


 3   Greystone Property Management Corporation,


 4   HOha22110651, and I'll assign that to


 5   Comm. Tolliver.


 6          That's okay?


 7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yes.  Thank you.


 8               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  The next case is


 9   Scheree Robinson versus Heart of Cardon, LLC.


10   The Case Number is EMra22090502, and I will


11   assign that to Comm. Blackburn.


12          And the next case is Marc Lampert versus


13   Southwest Dubois County School Corporation,


14   EMha22110671, and I will assign that to


15   Commissioner -- or Vice -- or Chair Slash.  I'm


16   sure she'll be back, so I will assign that to


17   Chair Slash.


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  One thing to note


19   about this gentleman, he was making a request to


20   be able to make an oral presentation before the


21   Commission.


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Okay.  Well, that's


23   a good one for Chair Slash.
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 1                      (Laughter.)


 2               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Okay.


 3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  She'll be very


 4   thankful to you, I'm sure.


 5               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Next, we move to


 6   Motions and Other Filings, and so, these are


 7   filings that -- Deputy Director, would you like


 8   to discuss these?


 9               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure, Vice-Chair.


10   Thank you.


11          Both of these motions that have been


12   filed, in the Mauricea Walker v. Carpenter


13   Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property Services, these


14   are motions to dismiss, and then there's also one


15   that includes a motion to refer the matter to the


16   Department of Justice for a criminal perjury


17   prosecution.  Both of the -- or this matter is


18   currently with an investigator for an


19   investigation, and the Respondent in this matter


20   has filed these motions to request the Commission


21   to dismiss these -- this complaint prior to the


22   conclusion of the investigation.


23          By -- pursuant to the rules for the
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 1   Commission, if a party files a prehearing motion,


 2   which these would be, then either the Chair,


 3   Vice-Chair, or if either of them are un -- both


 4   of them are unavailable, then any Commissioner


 5   shall rule on the motion.  So, with the Chair not


 6   being present, the Vice-Chair would make the


 7   determination on these motions and does not


 8   require a full Commission vote.


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.


10          In the case of Mauricea Walker versus


11   Carpenter Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property


12   Services, Case No. HOse22100617, motion denied.


13          The next one is the case of Mauricea


14   Walker versus Carpenter/Hayes -- Hayes Gibson


15   Property Services, HOse22100617, motion is


16   denied.


17               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Just so I


18   understand, the first one was in regards to the


19   Complainant's sexual harassment claim, and then


20   the second one was the one about the criminal


21   perjury referral?


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Yes --


23               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.
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 1               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- that is true, and


 2   in both of these cases, as Deputy Director


 3   Fleischhacker indicated, they're still in


 4   process, they're still in proceedings, so this is


 5   a quick way to try and short-circuit the process,


 6   and that's why I made the recommendation to deny.


 7          The next section is section c, which is to


 8   review the AL [sic] decisions.  We have to have a


 9   quorum for that, and we do not.


10          Then Deputy Director, would you like to


11   cover the Decisions to be Automatically


12   Confirmed?


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah.


14          The cases under section d, ALJ Decisions


15   Automatically Confirmed, these do not require a


16   Commission vote, but typically the presiding


17   officer of the meeting will read these into the


18   record, just to note that they are automatically


19   confirmed.


20               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.


21          So, for automatically confirming under the


22   Commission's order, we confirm Ray -- Richard Ray


23   Smith versus Ortho Indy Hospital, Case
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 1   No. PAha22050217, and also, the next case is


 2   Carla Mitchell versus Republic Airlines [sic],


 3   EMra19040198.


 4          That takes us to our next meeting, which


 5   is scheduled for the 19th of May.  Are there any


 6   concerns from any of the Commissioners not being


 7   able to attend the next meeting on the 19th?


 8                     (No response.)


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll


10   presume that we'll move forward with the meeting


11   on the 19th.


12          Are there any -- looking ahead, are there


13   any other concerns or issues, Commissioners, for


14   June, July or August?


15                     (No response.)


16               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll


17   stick with those as well.


18          We have no Elections, Training or Other to


19   preside today.


20          Are there any Public Announcements?


21                     (No response.)


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, is


23   there -- or are there any Public Comments?
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 1               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Vice-Chair, if I
 2   could raise a point of order.  Typically during
 3   the April meeting is when the Commission would
 4   hold their elections for Chair and Vice-Chair,
 5   but given that we've not met the electronic
 6   participation requirements, that election would
 7   be tabled until the next meeting when quorum and
 8   electronic participation requirements are met.
 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.  That's
10   an excellent point of order.  We'll absolutely
11   follow the rules.
12          Hearing no other Public Comments, I motion
13   to adjourn.
14                        -  -  -
               Thereupon, the proceedings of
15             April 21, 2023 were concluded
                    at 1:55 o'clock p.m.
16                        -  -  -
17
18
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 1                      CERTIFICATE


 2          I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned


 3   Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the


 4   City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do


 5   hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and


 6   correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me


 7   on Friday, April 21, 2023 in this matter and


 8   transcribed by me.


 9


10                        _________________________


11                         Lindy L. Meyer, Jr.,


12                         Notary Public in and


13                         for the State of Indiana.


14


15   My Commission expires August 26, 2024.


16   Commission No. NP0690003
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 1                                  1:30 o'clock p.m.
                                    April 21, 2023
 2                       -  -  -
 3              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: It is 1:30 on
 4  April 21st, and I call to order the Indiana Civil
 5  Rights Commission.  Just a note, by state
 6  statute, we have to have three Commissioners
 7  present.  We only have two today.  We do have
 8  Comm. Jackson, Silberberg and Blackburn on the
 9  phone, so for today's meeting, we will continue,
10  but we will not have the ability to approve any
11  votes today.
12         And so, with that, I'll turn it over to
13  Deputy Director Fleischhacker to review the
14  agenda.
15              MR. WILSON: Oh, the agenda?  Oh,
16  review of the agenda.
17              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Oh, Michael is
18  going to do that.
19              MR. LOSTUTTER: Yeah.  Just -- we'll
20  have the approval of previous meeting minutes, we
21  will have the Director's Report, then we would --
22  normally we'd have Old Business.  We cannot do
23  that, lacking a quorum, so we would move on,
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 1  then, to appointing Commissioners to
 2  Complainants' Appeals of Director's Findings, and
 3  also deal with the two motions that are also
 4  before the court, as that is something that we
 5  need either Chair or Vice-Chair approval on.  And
 6  then we cannot vote on the review of the ALJ
 7  Decisions and Orders; however, we can go ahead
 8  and read in the final orders that were
 9  automatically confirmed by the ALJ.
10              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Thank you.
11              MR. LOSTUTTER: You're welcome.
12              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: So, following the
13  agenda, it is -- we just announced the agenda, so
14  next would be the approval of the minutes, but
15  because we do not have a quorum, we cannot
16  approve the minutes, so we will defer that to our
17  next session, and that takes us the ICRC
18  Director's Report.
19              MR. WILSON: Thank you, Vice-Chair
20  Ramos.  Thank you, Commissioners.  Again, for
21  those on the screen, this is Greg Wilson,
22  Executive Director, Indiana Civil Rights
23  Commission.
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 1         Some of you hopefully got to attend the
 2  panel discussions.  I thought they were great.
 3  We did the first panel yesterday, and our next
 4  panel is on the 24th at 2:00 o'clock, and we
 5  would hope that you would join us.  We have -- I
 6  think these representatives are going to be from
 7  Ohio, and then also from IHCDA --
 8              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: (Nodded yes.)
 9              MR. WILSON: -- and then also our own
10  Deputy Director and General Counsel, David, will
11  be on there as well, and so, we think it'll be a
12  great panel discussion.  This is Fair Housing
13  Month, and so, during Fair Housing Month we try
14  to make sure that we put a lot of information out
15  to further fair housing.
16         So, coming up besides that, we are working
17  on our conference.  That's coming up Juneteenth.
18  It's three days.  Actually the first day is our
19  reception, and the next two days are days of
20  workshops.  The third day is not only the days of
21  workshops, but our dinner as well, so we're
22  excited about that.  Hopefully -- if you are
23  interested in attending, please let Michael know
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 1  that you're interested in attending the
 2  conference.
 3         And we'll make sure, Michael, that we send
 4  them the link to the conference.
 5         So, Michael will send that to all of the
 6  Commissioners, the link to the conference.
 7         And then one of the big highlights of this
 8  year, we're turning 60, and I'm talking about
 9  ICRC.  We're turning 60 years old, this is our
10  60th year, and we're going to celebrate.  We
11  haven't got to that point yet because we're still
12  stuck on the conference, but during the
13  conference we'll talk about 60 years and what it
14  means here for us here at ICRC to celebrate
15  the 60th year.  So, just know we're turning 60,
16  and we're not bad looking for 60.
17              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: All right.
18              MR. WILSON: And then I'll let David
19  go through kind of the --
20              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Sure.  Thanks.
21              MR. WILSON: -- the monthly report.
22              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Okay.
23         Just an update on some of the various
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 1  projects that we have going on that we talked
 2  about in prior meetings.  We have the Genesis
 3  phone system.  As has been reported previously,
 4  it continues to be a great tool for us to
 5  utilize, and it positions us to be better able to
 6  collect information on the work that our staff
 7  are doing.
 8         Just as a kind of comparison, as you may
 9  have seen in the At-a-Glance numbers for this
10  past month, you know, in March 2023, we recorded
11  979 calls that came in on our 1-800 number and
12  the 2600, the 317-232-2600 numbers into our
13  office during the month of March.
14         That's compared to hand counting 155 calls
15  a year ago in March.  So, I'm sure that we
16  received more than 155 calls last March, but we
17  didn't have nearly the excellent capacity that we
18  have now to track the work that is being done, so
19  our staff are doing a great job of working with
20  that.
21         We're also working with our -- with IOT
22  and with the vendor to continue to build upon
23  what's already in place for Genesis.  We're
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 1  looking at the feasibility of adding a directory
 2  of staff numbers, when somebody calls in and
 3  wants to get directly to some -- one person, or
 4  maybe after hours have a -- leave a voicemail for
 5  a particular individual.
 6         So, we're exploring some things like that
 7  to make the system even more user friendly, both
 8  for callers that call in, but also for our staff
 9  as well, because then that may direct some
10  callers to a specific staff member instead of
11  going through the queues and taking time to do
12  all of that.
13         Our CMS, our Case Management System, is
14  continuing to be enhanced.  Right now we're
15  working very hard on developing the capacity to
16  generate Power BI reports, so -- and creating
17  things like our monthly reports for the
18  Commission.  Our staff are going to be able to go
19  right into CMS and have a lot of those things
20  automatically generated for them instead of
21  having to do things by hand and through Excel
22  spreadsheets, things of that nature.  So, a lot
23  of enhancements continue to be done with that.
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 1         We're trying to fully integrate DocuSign
 2  into the Case Management System so that if we
 3  have documents that need to be sent out to
 4  complainants or respondents or whomever to be
 5  signed, then we can do that automatically through
 6  the Case Management System, they go out, and then
 7  hopefully get those signed documents returned in
 8  a very timely manner.
 9         And then right now we're in the midst of
10  doing fair housing testing.  We have a
11  partnership with the IHCDA, the Indiana Housing
12  and Community Development Authority, and then
13  also some funding from HUD through some
14  partnership funds, to do some directed testing on
15  properties across the State of Indiana, and
16  testing on a couple of different things.
17         So, right now we're in the midst of that,
18  so as those results come in, then they may
19  generate some Director-initiated complaints
20  regarding if there's some significant differences
21  in how the testers were treated versus -- you
22  know, the protected tester versus the
23  nonprotected tester.  So, there's some various
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 1  projects that we have going on.
 2         As far as some metrics go, you can see on
 3  the At-a-Glance that our March numbers and our
 4  year-to-date numbers are much higher than they
 5  have been in prior -- you know, just a year ago.
 6  To give you some further, I guess, examples of
 7  that, for year-to-date numbers for 2023, you can
 8  see that the number of calls that we have
 9  recorded are well over 2,000, as compared to 574
10  calls that we had calculated March, year-to-date,
11  in 2022.
12         For inquiries, we're at 649 so far
13  in 2023, as compared to 420 over the same time
14  period in 2022.  Complaints, we're at 327 versus
15  126 in 2022, so almost 200 more complaints in
16  just a three-month time period.
17         And then in settlement figures, in 2023,
18  we've already resolved -- by just through the end
19  of March, we have resolved cases that resulted
20  in $372,500 in monetary relief for complainants,
21  compared to just over 150,000 in the same time
22  period of 2022.  So, a lot of great work that's
23  going on from our staff.
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 1         There -- I think some of the technological
 2  improvements that we've done, and then just some
 3  staff longevity and being better positioned and
 4  more knowledgeable and skillful in how they do
 5  things has enabled us to meet the demands that
 6  are coming in.
 7         We don't file the complaints, they come in
 8  to us, but we're able to process them in a more
 9  timely manner, get them turned around and
10  investigated in a more timely manner, and prevent
11  them from being aged because we're moving them
12  along quickly.  So, a lot of great work for our
13  staff.
14              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: That's great.  I
15  commend the Commission for the great work that
16  you're doing.  Certainly having stuff turnover
17  causes all kinds of challenges, and the fact that
18  you've been able to actually grow staff and
19  retain is huge.  It really says a lot about the
20  Executive Director and Deputy Director, and all
21  of that trickles up.  So, my congrats to you.
22         The numbers are impressive.  My background
23  is in technology, so I'm a big plus on that, and
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 1  it does have an impact on productivity, and
 2  oftentimes they also correlate that to lack of
 3  losing people, right, because, you know,
 4  productivity.  But in this case, you know, it
 5  hasn't been that way, so congratulations --
 6              MR. WILSON: Just to add to --
 7              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: -- to all.
 8              MR. WILSON: Just to add to that, one
 9  of the things, too, I think the confidence from
10  the public in us has increased as more -- as we
11  get the word out about our agencies, who we are.
12         And then the turnaround of our staff and
13  some of the things that Dave has instituted with
14  his staff, making sure that we stay in contact
15  with those complainants and make sure that, you
16  know, that communication's there.  That's very
17  important.
18         And then the marketing campaign that we
19  did last year, we think that had a strong impact
20  out in the community.  We target specific areas
21  to market in, and some who were in some of those
22  faraway areas where complaints might exist, and I
23  just think that we've done a really good job of
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 1  communicating to the public.  And we have a great
 2  External Affairs team that has done a remarkable
 3  job using social media platforms, and then also
 4  working with community partners.
 5         So, I think, as an agency overall, we have
 6  a strong team.  Well, as I said, with intake I
 7  like to always lift them up, because initially
 8  when I got here, we had a very weak intake
 9  department, and we couldn't process the
10  complainants like we could today, and that's
11  because of Christiana's leadership and her
12  building a strong team.
13         Without intake, we couldn't push this
14  stuff through, and we're getting a lot -- we're
15  getting a lot of cases now.  We're getting quite
16  a few cases, and so, I appreciate Christiana and
17  her team, the intake team, for what they do.  We
18  just have a great department.
19         And Comm. Ramos, you've been here a long
20  time, and especially you were here when I first
21  started here at the agency, and so, you know
22  what's -- and also you, Comm. Blackburn, you
23  know, it was in rough shape, and thanks to all of
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 1  the talent that has come through, and we continue
 2  to build.  When people come, they left something
 3  to build on, and so, we're just excited about
 4  where we are today as a civil rights agency.
 5         So, as we go into the 60th year, I'm very
 6  excited about the possibilities.  Whether I'm
 7  here or not, we've built a strong platform for us
 8  to build on, so --
 9              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Well, and you --
10  again, congratulations on that, but it also
11  translates across the country, right, because the
12  work that you're doing, I know people are always
13  looking at what others are doing, and the close
14  association with the others.  And the fact that
15  your session this summer is open nationally --
16              MR. WILSON: Yeah.
17              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: -- that's just
18  fantastic, so great job.
19              MR. WILSON: Well, Stephanie, who is
20  our Director of External -- Internal and External
21  Programming, one of her tasks is to work with
22  other regional partners and those around the
23  country.  If you look yesterday at our meeting,
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 1  we had people from Rhode Island and some other
 2  places attending our panel discussion, and we've
 3  built a good reputation throughout the region
 4  with our regional partners.
 5              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: It was a good
 6  session yesterday, and there were other
 7  Commissions that were on that as well, but it
 8  is -- and as much as you've indicated, I've been
 9  here for a while, and as has Comm. Blackburn, but
10  it's still interesting to see the pieces that
11  come up, that you're like, "Dang."  I don't know
12  a better word to say but just that, but what
13  happens in other areas, that if it continues
14  in 2023, it's just sad.  But the good news is the
15  work we're doing is making an impact.
16              MR. WILSON: Well, we've never had
17  this kind of talent, though, at once.  We had
18  bits and pieces of, you know, strong talent, but
19  for the first time since I've been here, we have
20  a strong team all across the board, and couldn't
21  do it without this strong team.
22              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Right.
23         Commissioners, any comments or discussion?
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 1              COMM. TOLLIVER: I just had a couple
 2  of questions.  You said that you've got calls
 3  from all over.  Is there a heat map somewhere,
 4  just to see where calls are coming from?
 5              MR. WILSON: Yeah -- well, you're
 6  talking about a heat map?  Not a heat map.
 7              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: We just have a
 8  list of -- based on what they've submitted as
 9  part of their registration, where they were
10  calling in from, so we just have that data based
11  on --
12              MR. WILSON: Yes.
13              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: -- participants
14  from the --
15              MR. WILSON: Yeah, it shows where
16  they're watching from, like some are from Ohio.
17              COMM. TOLLIVER: Oh, I'm sorry; the
18  calls that come in with complaints.
19              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Oh, you're
20  talking about for our call system?
21              COMM. TOLLIVER: Yes.
22              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: We don't like
23  have a heat map, but once we -- once they get
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 1  turned into like an inquiry and complaint, then
 2  we track where they're calling from, and so,
 3  we'll -- we're going to have a better
 4  understanding of kind of where regionally, and
 5  even by ZIP Code, you know, where complaints are
 6  coming in from or where complaints are not coming
 7  in from.  So, as we continue to build a more
 8  robust data set, we'll be able to kind of dig in
 9  and see some of those things, and that's going to
10  direct some of our external outreach --
11              COMM. TOLLIVER: Okay.
12              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: -- you know,
13  where do we need to go to reach people, things of
14  that nature.  There are -- you know, we do have
15  some limitations as far as some advertisements,
16  because there's some local fair housing
17  organizations in some areas, so we're -- based on
18  our HUD agreements, we're not permitted to
19  advertise in some of those areas, so we have to
20  be mindful of some of those things, but other
21  than that, we're trying to reach our full
22  jurisdiction and get people to come to us that
23  need to come to us.


Page 18


 1              MR. WILSON: Yeah, we do know where
 2  regional complaints are coming from.
 3              COMM. TOLLIVER: Yeah, because that's
 4  what I was thinking, that -- I assume that
 5  Indianapolis and the doughnuts you get a lot of
 6  complaints, just because --
 7              MR. WILSON: Yes.
 8              COMM. TOLLIVER: -- the Commission's
 9  more well known here, but I don't know about some
10  of those -- and I didn't even think about that.
11  You get up to Lake County, that's probably
12  handled by Chicago.
13              MR. WILSON: No.
14              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: No, because it's
15  still Indiana.
16              COMM. TOLLIVER: Oh, so there's not a
17  club up there that says, "We want this"?
18              MR. WILSON: Well, they're not in
19  Indiana.
20              COMM. TOLLIVER: Okay.
21              MR. WILSON: Our statute, we do all
22  of Indiana.
23              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Yeah.
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 1              MR. WILSON: So, we can't -- and then
 2  the big thing is we do -- even right now, like
 3  David said, at some point we'll use the data the
 4  way that we need to, but right now, we work in
 5  various cities across the state.  With our
 6  marketing campaigns we'll do it here, we can do
 7  it here, but our goal is to partner with people,
 8  helping to push out information about ICRC.
 9              COMM. TOLLIVER: And can I ask what
10  the difference is between a call and an inquiry?
11              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Sure.  A call is
12  just tracked -- you know, if somebody calls in to
13  the 1-800 number or to the 2600 number, that's
14  counted as a call.
15         An inquiry -- and those calls can be
16  somebody calling in to say, you know, "I have an
17  issue with, you know, a police officer," which,
18  you know, is not going to be our jurisdiction.
19  We're not going to make that into an inquiry.
20         An inquiry is more based on -- it might be
21  something that we would have jurisdiction over,
22  so we'd start looking into that and try to
23  establish whether we have jurisdiction over it.
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 1  So, those inquiries, those that we do have
 2  jurisdiction over and those that we eventually
 3  get a signed complaint back from a complainant,
 4  then those are what would turn into a formalized
 5  complaint.
 6              COMM. TOLLIVER: Okay.  That's all.
 7  Thank you.
 8              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Yep.
 9              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Are there any other
10  comments or questions from the Commissioners on
11  the phone?
12                    (No response.)
13              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Hearing none, we'll
14  move on to the next element in the agenda.  That
15  is Old Business, and as was previously discussed,
16  we can't do any motions because we don't have a
17  quorum on site, so we will skip that and move to
18  New Business.
19         There are four cases in the new
20  complaints, and so, I will read them in and then
21  assign them accordingly.  So, the first one is
22  Ajahnique Evans versus Pedcor Affordable
23  Investments, LLC, HOra22100558.  I will assign
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 1  that to myself.
 2         The next case is Shantana Maxwell versus
 3  Greystone Property Management Corporation,
 4  HOha22110651, and I'll assign that to
 5  Comm. Tolliver.
 6         That's okay?
 7              COMM. TOLLIVER: Yes.  Thank you.
 8              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: The next case is
 9  Scheree Robinson versus Heart of Cardon, LLC.
10  The Case Number is EMra22090502, and I will
11  assign that to Comm. Blackburn.
12         And the next case is Marc Lampert versus
13  Southwest Dubois County School Corporation,
14  EMha22110671, and I will assign that to
15  Commissioner -- or Vice -- or Chair Slash.  I'm
16  sure she'll be back, so I will assign that to
17  Chair Slash.
18              MR. LOSTUTTER: One thing to note
19  about this gentleman, he was making a request to
20  be able to make an oral presentation before the
21  Commission.
22              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Okay.  Well, that's
23  a good one for Chair Slash.
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 1                     (Laughter.)
 2              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Okay.
 3              MR. LOSTUTTER: She'll be very
 4  thankful to you, I'm sure.
 5              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Next, we move to
 6  Motions and Other Filings, and so, these are
 7  filings that -- Deputy Director, would you like
 8  to discuss these?
 9              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Sure, Vice-Chair.
10  Thank you.
11         Both of these motions that have been
12  filed, in the Mauricea Walker v. Carpenter
13  Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property Services, these
14  are motions to dismiss, and then there's also one
15  that includes a motion to refer the matter to the
16  Department of Justice for a criminal perjury
17  prosecution.  Both of the -- or this matter is
18  currently with an investigator for an
19  investigation, and the Respondent in this matter
20  has filed these motions to request the Commission
21  to dismiss these -- this complaint prior to the
22  conclusion of the investigation.
23         By -- pursuant to the rules for the
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 1  Commission, if a party files a prehearing motion,
 2  which these would be, then either the Chair,
 3  Vice-Chair, or if either of them are un -- both
 4  of them are unavailable, then any Commissioner
 5  shall rule on the motion.  So, with the Chair not
 6  being present, the Vice-Chair would make the
 7  determination on these motions and does not
 8  require a full Commission vote.
 9              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Thank you.
10         In the case of Mauricea Walker versus
11  Carpenter Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property
12  Services, Case No. HOse22100617, motion denied.
13         The next one is the case of Mauricea
14  Walker versus Carpenter/Hayes -- Hayes Gibson
15  Property Services, HOse22100617, motion is
16  denied.
17              COMM. TOLLIVER: Just so I
18  understand, the first one was in regards to the
19  Complainant's sexual harassment claim, and then
20  the second one was the one about the criminal
21  perjury referral?
22              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Yes --
23              COMM. TOLLIVER: Okay.


Page 24


 1              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: -- that is true, and
 2  in both of these cases, as Deputy Director
 3  Fleischhacker indicated, they're still in
 4  process, they're still in proceedings, so this is
 5  a quick way to try and short-circuit the process,
 6  and that's why I made the recommendation to deny.
 7         The next section is section c, which is to
 8  review the AL [sic] decisions.  We have to have a
 9  quorum for that, and we do not.
10         Then Deputy Director, would you like to
11  cover the Decisions to be Automatically
12  Confirmed?
13              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Yeah.
14         The cases under section d, ALJ Decisions
15  Automatically Confirmed, these do not require a
16  Commission vote, but typically the presiding
17  officer of the meeting will read these into the
18  record, just to note that they are automatically
19  confirmed.
20              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Thank you.
21         So, for automatically confirming under the
22  Commission's order, we confirm Ray -- Richard Ray
23  Smith versus Ortho Indy Hospital, Case
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 1  No. PAha22050217, and also, the next case is
 2  Carla Mitchell versus Republic Airlines [sic],
 3  EMra19040198.
 4         That takes us to our next meeting, which
 5  is scheduled for the 19th of May.  Are there any
 6  concerns from any of the Commissioners not being
 7  able to attend the next meeting on the 19th?
 8                    (No response.)
 9              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Hearing none, we'll
10  presume that we'll move forward with the meeting
11  on the 19th.
12         Are there any -- looking ahead, are there
13  any other concerns or issues, Commissioners, for
14  June, July or August?
15                    (No response.)
16              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Hearing none, we'll
17  stick with those as well.
18         We have no Elections, Training or Other to
19  preside today.
20         Are there any Public Announcements?
21                    (No response.)
22              CHAIRMAN RAMOS: Hearing none, is
23  there -- or are there any Public Comments?
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 1              MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Vice-Chair, if I
   
 2  could raise a point of order.  Typically during
   
 3  the April meeting is when the Commission would
   
 4  hold their elections for Chair and Vice-Chair,
   
 5  but given that we've not met the electronic
   
 6  participation requirements, that election would
   
 7  be tabled until the next meeting when quorum and
   
 8  electronic participation requirements are met.
   
 9              CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.  That's
   
10  an excellent point of order.  We'll absolutely
   
11  follow the rules.
   
12         Hearing no other Public Comments, I motion
   
13  to adjourn.
   
14                       -  -  -
              Thereupon, the proceedings of
15            April 21, 2023 were concluded
                   at 1:55 o'clock p.m.
16                       -  -  -
   
17 
   
18 
   
19 
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
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 1                     CERTIFICATE
   
 2         I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned
   
 3  Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the
   
 4  City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do
   
 5  hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and
   
 6  correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me
   
 7  on Friday, April 21, 2023 in this matter and
   
 8  transcribed by me.
   
 9 
   
10                       _________________________
   
11                        Lindy L. Meyer, Jr.,
   
12                        Notary Public in and
   
13                        for the State of Indiana.
   
14 
   
15  My Commission expires August 26, 2024.
   
16  Commission No. NP0690003
   
17 
   
18 
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20 
   
21 
   
22 
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 1                                   1:30 o'clock p.m.
                                   April 21, 2023


 2                        -  -  -
  


 3               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  It is 1:30 on
  


 4   April 21st, and I call to order the Indiana Civil
  


 5   Rights Commission.  Just a note, by state
  


 6   statute, we have to have three Commissioners
  


 7   present.  We only have two today.  We do have
  


 8   Comm. Jackson, Silberberg and Blackburn on the
  


 9   phone, so for today's meeting, we will continue,
  


10   but we will not have the ability to approve any
  


11   votes today.
  


12          And so, with that, I'll turn it over to
  


13   Deputy Director Fleischhacker to review the
  


14   agenda.
  


15               MR. WILSON:  Oh, the agenda?  Oh,
  


16   review of the agenda.
  


17               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Oh, Michael is
  


18   going to do that.
  


19               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Yeah.  Just -- we'll
  


20   have the approval of previous meeting minutes, we
  


21   will have the Director's Report, then we would --
  


22   normally we'd have Old Business.  We cannot do
  


23   that, lacking a quorum, so we would move on,
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 1   then, to appointing Commissioners to
  


 2   Complainants' Appeals of Director's Findings, and
  


 3   also deal with the two motions that are also
  


 4   before the court, as that is something that we
  


 5   need either Chair or Vice-Chair approval on.  And
  


 6   then we cannot vote on the review of the ALJ
  


 7   Decisions and Orders; however, we can go ahead
  


 8   and read in the final orders that were
  


 9   automatically confirmed by the ALJ.
  


10               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


11               MR. LOSTUTTER:  You're welcome.
  


12               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  So, following the
  


13   agenda, it is -- we just announced the agenda, so
  


14   next would be the approval of the minutes, but
  


15   because we do not have a quorum, we cannot
  


16   approve the minutes, so we will defer that to our
  


17   next session, and that takes us the ICRC
  


18   Director's Report.
  


19               MR. WILSON:  Thank you, Vice-Chair
  


20   Ramos.  Thank you, Commissioners.  Again, for
  


21   those on the screen, this is Greg Wilson,
  


22   Executive Director, Indiana Civil Rights
  


23   Commission.
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 1          Some of you hopefully got to attend the
  


 2   panel discussions.  I thought they were great.
  


 3   We did the first panel yesterday, and our next
  


 4   panel is on the 24th at 2:00 o'clock, and we
  


 5   would hope that you would join us.  We have -- I
  


 6   think these representatives are going to be from
  


 7   Ohio, and then also from IHCDA --
  


 8               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  (Nodded yes.)
  


 9               MR. WILSON:  -- and then also our own
  


10   Deputy Director and General Counsel, David, will
  


11   be on there as well, and so, we think it'll be a
  


12   great panel discussion.  This is Fair Housing
  


13   Month, and so, during Fair Housing Month we try
  


14   to make sure that we put a lot of information out
  


15   to further fair housing.
  


16          So, coming up besides that, we are working
  


17   on our conference.  That's coming up Juneteenth.
  


18   It's three days.  Actually the first day is our
  


19   reception, and the next two days are days of
  


20   workshops.  The third day is not only the days of
  


21   workshops, but our dinner as well, so we're
  


22   excited about that.  Hopefully -- if you are
  


23   interested in attending, please let Michael know
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 1   that you're interested in attending the
  


 2   conference.
  


 3          And we'll make sure, Michael, that we send
  


 4   them the link to the conference.
  


 5          So, Michael will send that to all of the
  


 6   Commissioners, the link to the conference.
  


 7          And then one of the big highlights of this
  


 8   year, we're turning 60, and I'm talking about
  


 9   ICRC.  We're turning 60 years old, this is our
  


10   60th year, and we're going to celebrate.  We
  


11   haven't got to that point yet because we're still
  


12   stuck on the conference, but during the
  


13   conference we'll talk about 60 years and what it
  


14   means here for us here at ICRC to celebrate
  


15   the 60th year.  So, just know we're turning 60,
  


16   and we're not bad looking for 60.
  


17               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  All right.
  


18               MR. WILSON:  And then I'll let David
  


19   go through kind of the --
  


20               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.  Thanks.
  


21               MR. WILSON:  -- the monthly report.
  


22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.
  


23          Just an update on some of the various
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 1   projects that we have going on that we talked
  


 2   about in prior meetings.  We have the Genesis
  


 3   phone system.  As has been reported previously,
  


 4   it continues to be a great tool for us to
  


 5   utilize, and it positions us to be better able to
  


 6   collect information on the work that our staff
  


 7   are doing.
  


 8          Just as a kind of comparison, as you may
  


 9   have seen in the At-a-Glance numbers for this
  


10   past month, you know, in March 2023, we recorded
  


11   979 calls that came in on our 1-800 number and
  


12   the 2600, the 317-232-2600 numbers into our
  


13   office during the month of March.
  


14          That's compared to hand counting 155 calls
  


15   a year ago in March.  So, I'm sure that we
  


16   received more than 155 calls last March, but we
  


17   didn't have nearly the excellent capacity that we
  


18   have now to track the work that is being done, so
  


19   our staff are doing a great job of working with
  


20   that.
  


21          We're also working with our -- with IOT
  


22   and with the vendor to continue to build upon
  


23   what's already in place for Genesis.  We're
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 1   looking at the feasibility of adding a directory
  


 2   of staff numbers, when somebody calls in and
  


 3   wants to get directly to some -- one person, or
  


 4   maybe after hours have a -- leave a voicemail for
  


 5   a particular individual.
  


 6          So, we're exploring some things like that
  


 7   to make the system even more user friendly, both
  


 8   for callers that call in, but also for our staff
  


 9   as well, because then that may direct some
  


10   callers to a specific staff member instead of
  


11   going through the queues and taking time to do
  


12   all of that.
  


13          Our CMS, our Case Management System, is
  


14   continuing to be enhanced.  Right now we're
  


15   working very hard on developing the capacity to
  


16   generate Power BI reports, so -- and creating
  


17   things like our monthly reports for the
  


18   Commission.  Our staff are going to be able to go
  


19   right into CMS and have a lot of those things
  


20   automatically generated for them instead of
  


21   having to do things by hand and through Excel
  


22   spreadsheets, things of that nature.  So, a lot
  


23   of enhancements continue to be done with that.
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 1          We're trying to fully integrate DocuSign
  


 2   into the Case Management System so that if we
  


 3   have documents that need to be sent out to
  


 4   complainants or respondents or whomever to be
  


 5   signed, then we can do that automatically through
  


 6   the Case Management System, they go out, and then
  


 7   hopefully get those signed documents returned in
  


 8   a very timely manner.
  


 9          And then right now we're in the midst of
  


10   doing fair housing testing.  We have a
  


11   partnership with the IHCDA, the Indiana Housing
  


12   and Community Development Authority, and then
  


13   also some funding from HUD through some
  


14   partnership funds, to do some directed testing on
  


15   properties across the State of Indiana, and
  


16   testing on a couple of different things.
  


17          So, right now we're in the midst of that,
  


18   so as those results come in, then they may
  


19   generate some Director-initiated complaints
  


20   regarding if there's some significant differences
  


21   in how the testers were treated versus -- you
  


22   know, the protected tester versus the
  


23   nonprotected tester.  So, there's some various
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 1   projects that we have going on.
  


 2          As far as some metrics go, you can see on
  


 3   the At-a-Glance that our March numbers and our
  


 4   year-to-date numbers are much higher than they
  


 5   have been in prior -- you know, just a year ago.
  


 6   To give you some further, I guess, examples of
  


 7   that, for year-to-date numbers for 2023, you can
  


 8   see that the number of calls that we have
  


 9   recorded are well over 2,000, as compared to 574
  


10   calls that we had calculated March, year-to-date,
  


11   in 2022.
  


12          For inquiries, we're at 649 so far
  


13   in 2023, as compared to 420 over the same time
  


14   period in 2022.  Complaints, we're at 327 versus
  


15   126 in 2022, so almost 200 more complaints in
  


16   just a three-month time period.
  


17          And then in settlement figures, in 2023,
  


18   we've already resolved -- by just through the end
  


19   of March, we have resolved cases that resulted
  


20   in $372,500 in monetary relief for complainants,
  


21   compared to just over 150,000 in the same time
  


22   period of 2022.  So, a lot of great work that's
  


23   going on from our staff.
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 1          There -- I think some of the technological
  


 2   improvements that we've done, and then just some
  


 3   staff longevity and being better positioned and
  


 4   more knowledgeable and skillful in how they do
  


 5   things has enabled us to meet the demands that
  


 6   are coming in.
  


 7          We don't file the complaints, they come in
  


 8   to us, but we're able to process them in a more
  


 9   timely manner, get them turned around and
  


10   investigated in a more timely manner, and prevent
  


11   them from being aged because we're moving them
  


12   along quickly.  So, a lot of great work for our
  


13   staff.
  


14               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  That's great.  I
  


15   commend the Commission for the great work that
  


16   you're doing.  Certainly having stuff turnover
  


17   causes all kinds of challenges, and the fact that
  


18   you've been able to actually grow staff and
  


19   retain is huge.  It really says a lot about the
  


20   Executive Director and Deputy Director, and all
  


21   of that trickles up.  So, my congrats to you.
  


22          The numbers are impressive.  My background
  


23   is in technology, so I'm a big plus on that, and
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 1   it does have an impact on productivity, and
  


 2   oftentimes they also correlate that to lack of
  


 3   losing people, right, because, you know,
  


 4   productivity.  But in this case, you know, it
  


 5   hasn't been that way, so congratulations --
  


 6               MR. WILSON:  Just to add to --
  


 7               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- to all.
  


 8               MR. WILSON:  Just to add to that, one
  


 9   of the things, too, I think the confidence from
  


10   the public in us has increased as more -- as we
  


11   get the word out about our agencies, who we are.
  


12          And then the turnaround of our staff and
  


13   some of the things that Dave has instituted with
  


14   his staff, making sure that we stay in contact
  


15   with those complainants and make sure that, you
  


16   know, that communication's there.  That's very
  


17   important.
  


18          And then the marketing campaign that we
  


19   did last year, we think that had a strong impact
  


20   out in the community.  We target specific areas
  


21   to market in, and some who were in some of those
  


22   faraway areas where complaints might exist, and I
  


23   just think that we've done a really good job of
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 1   communicating to the public.  And we have a great
  


 2   External Affairs team that has done a remarkable
  


 3   job using social media platforms, and then also
  


 4   working with community partners.
  


 5          So, I think, as an agency overall, we have
  


 6   a strong team.  Well, as I said, with intake I
  


 7   like to always lift them up, because initially
  


 8   when I got here, we had a very weak intake
  


 9   department, and we couldn't process the
  


10   complainants like we could today, and that's
  


11   because of Christiana's leadership and her
  


12   building a strong team.
  


13          Without intake, we couldn't push this
  


14   stuff through, and we're getting a lot -- we're
  


15   getting a lot of cases now.  We're getting quite
  


16   a few cases, and so, I appreciate Christiana and
  


17   her team, the intake team, for what they do.  We
  


18   just have a great department.
  


19          And Comm. Ramos, you've been here a long
  


20   time, and especially you were here when I first
  


21   started here at the agency, and so, you know
  


22   what's -- and also you, Comm. Blackburn, you
  


23   know, it was in rough shape, and thanks to all of
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 1   the talent that has come through, and we continue
  


 2   to build.  When people come, they left something
  


 3   to build on, and so, we're just excited about
  


 4   where we are today as a civil rights agency.
  


 5          So, as we go into the 60th year, I'm very
  


 6   excited about the possibilities.  Whether I'm
  


 7   here or not, we've built a strong platform for us
  


 8   to build on, so --
  


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Well, and you --
  


10   again, congratulations on that, but it also
  


11   translates across the country, right, because the
  


12   work that you're doing, I know people are always
  


13   looking at what others are doing, and the close
  


14   association with the others.  And the fact that
  


15   your session this summer is open nationally --
  


16               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.
  


17               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- that's just
  


18   fantastic, so great job.
  


19               MR. WILSON:  Well, Stephanie, who is
  


20   our Director of External -- Internal and External
  


21   Programming, one of her tasks is to work with
  


22   other regional partners and those around the
  


23   country.  If you look yesterday at our meeting,
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 1   we had people from Rhode Island and some other
  


 2   places attending our panel discussion, and we've
  


 3   built a good reputation throughout the region
  


 4   with our regional partners.
  


 5               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  It was a good
  


 6   session yesterday, and there were other
  


 7   Commissions that were on that as well, but it
  


 8   is -- and as much as you've indicated, I've been
  


 9   here for a while, and as has Comm. Blackburn, but
  


10   it's still interesting to see the pieces that
  


11   come up, that you're like, "Dang."  I don't know
  


12   a better word to say but just that, but what
  


13   happens in other areas, that if it continues
  


14   in 2023, it's just sad.  But the good news is the
  


15   work we're doing is making an impact.
  


16               MR. WILSON:  Well, we've never had
  


17   this kind of talent, though, at once.  We had
  


18   bits and pieces of, you know, strong talent, but
  


19   for the first time since I've been here, we have
  


20   a strong team all across the board, and couldn't
  


21   do it without this strong team.
  


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Right.
  


23          Commissioners, any comments or discussion?
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 1               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I just had a couple
  


 2   of questions.  You said that you've got calls
  


 3   from all over.  Is there a heat map somewhere,
  


 4   just to see where calls are coming from?
  


 5               MR. WILSON:  Yeah -- well, you're
  


 6   talking about a heat map?  Not a heat map.
  


 7               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  We just have a
  


 8   list of -- based on what they've submitted as
  


 9   part of their registration, where they were
  


10   calling in from, so we just have that data based
  


11   on --
  


12               MR. WILSON:  Yes.
  


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- participants
  


14   from the --
  


15               MR. WILSON:  Yeah, it shows where
  


16   they're watching from, like some are from Ohio.
  


17               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Oh, I'm sorry; the
  


18   calls that come in with complaints.
  


19               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Oh, you're
  


20   talking about for our call system?
  


21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yes.
  


22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  We don't like
  


23   have a heat map, but once we -- once they get
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 1   turned into like an inquiry and complaint, then
  


 2   we track where they're calling from, and so,
  


 3   we'll -- we're going to have a better
  


 4   understanding of kind of where regionally, and
  


 5   even by ZIP Code, you know, where complaints are
  


 6   coming in from or where complaints are not coming
  


 7   in from.  So, as we continue to build a more
  


 8   robust data set, we'll be able to kind of dig in
  


 9   and see some of those things, and that's going to
  


10   direct some of our external outreach --
  


11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.
  


12               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- you know,
  


13   where do we need to go to reach people, things of
  


14   that nature.  There are -- you know, we do have
  


15   some limitations as far as some advertisements,
  


16   because there's some local fair housing
  


17   organizations in some areas, so we're -- based on
  


18   our HUD agreements, we're not permitted to
  


19   advertise in some of those areas, so we have to
  


20   be mindful of some of those things, but other
  


21   than that, we're trying to reach our full
  


22   jurisdiction and get people to come to us that
  


23   need to come to us.
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 1               MR. WILSON:  Yeah, we do know where
  


 2   regional complaints are coming from.
  


 3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yeah, because that's
  


 4   what I was thinking, that -- I assume that
  


 5   Indianapolis and the doughnuts you get a lot of
  


 6   complaints, just because --
  


 7               MR. WILSON:  Yes.
  


 8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  -- the Commission's
  


 9   more well known here, but I don't know about some
  


10   of those -- and I didn't even think about that.
  


11   You get up to Lake County, that's probably
  


12   handled by Chicago.
  


13               MR. WILSON:  No.
  


14               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  No, because it's
  


15   still Indiana.
  


16               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Oh, so there's not a
  


17   club up there that says, "We want this"?
  


18               MR. WILSON:  Well, they're not in
  


19   Indiana.
  


20               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.
  


21               MR. WILSON:  Our statute, we do all
  


22   of Indiana.
  


23               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah.
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 1               MR. WILSON:  So, we can't -- and then
  


 2   the big thing is we do -- even right now, like
  


 3   David said, at some point we'll use the data the
  


 4   way that we need to, but right now, we work in
  


 5   various cities across the state.  With our
  


 6   marketing campaigns we'll do it here, we can do
  


 7   it here, but our goal is to partner with people,
  


 8   helping to push out information about ICRC.
  


 9               COMM. TOLLIVER:  And can I ask what
  


10   the difference is between a call and an inquiry?
  


11               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.  A call is
  


12   just tracked -- you know, if somebody calls in to
  


13   the 1-800 number or to the 2600 number, that's
  


14   counted as a call.
  


15          An inquiry -- and those calls can be
  


16   somebody calling in to say, you know, "I have an
  


17   issue with, you know, a police officer," which,
  


18   you know, is not going to be our jurisdiction.
  


19   We're not going to make that into an inquiry.
  


20          An inquiry is more based on -- it might be
  


21   something that we would have jurisdiction over,
  


22   so we'd start looking into that and try to
  


23   establish whether we have jurisdiction over it.
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 1   So, those inquiries, those that we do have
  


 2   jurisdiction over and those that we eventually
  


 3   get a signed complaint back from a complainant,
  


 4   then those are what would turn into a formalized
  


 5   complaint.
  


 6               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.  That's all.
  


 7   Thank you.
  


 8               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yep.
  


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Are there any other
  


10   comments or questions from the Commissioners on
  


11   the phone?
  


12                     (No response.)
  


13               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll
  


14   move on to the next element in the agenda.  That
  


15   is Old Business, and as was previously discussed,
  


16   we can't do any motions because we don't have a
  


17   quorum on site, so we will skip that and move to
  


18   New Business.
  


19          There are four cases in the new
  


20   complaints, and so, I will read them in and then
  


21   assign them accordingly.  So, the first one is
  


22   Ajahnique Evans versus Pedcor Affordable
  


23   Investments, LLC, HOra22100558.  I will assign
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 1   that to myself.
  


 2          The next case is Shantana Maxwell versus
  


 3   Greystone Property Management Corporation,
  


 4   HOha22110651, and I'll assign that to
  


 5   Comm. Tolliver.
  


 6          That's okay?
  


 7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yes.  Thank you.
  


 8               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  The next case is
  


 9   Scheree Robinson versus Heart of Cardon, LLC.
  


10   The Case Number is EMra22090502, and I will
  


11   assign that to Comm. Blackburn.
  


12          And the next case is Marc Lampert versus
  


13   Southwest Dubois County School Corporation,
  


14   EMha22110671, and I will assign that to
  


15   Commissioner -- or Vice -- or Chair Slash.  I'm
  


16   sure she'll be back, so I will assign that to
  


17   Chair Slash.
  


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  One thing to note
  


19   about this gentleman, he was making a request to
  


20   be able to make an oral presentation before the
  


21   Commission.
  


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Okay.  Well, that's
  


23   a good one for Chair Slash.
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 1                      (Laughter.)
  


 2               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Okay.
  


 3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  She'll be very
  


 4   thankful to you, I'm sure.
  


 5               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Next, we move to
  


 6   Motions and Other Filings, and so, these are
  


 7   filings that -- Deputy Director, would you like
  


 8   to discuss these?
  


 9               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure, Vice-Chair.
  


10   Thank you.
  


11          Both of these motions that have been
  


12   filed, in the Mauricea Walker v. Carpenter
  


13   Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property Services, these
  


14   are motions to dismiss, and then there's also one
  


15   that includes a motion to refer the matter to the
  


16   Department of Justice for a criminal perjury
  


17   prosecution.  Both of the -- or this matter is
  


18   currently with an investigator for an
  


19   investigation, and the Respondent in this matter
  


20   has filed these motions to request the Commission
  


21   to dismiss these -- this complaint prior to the
  


22   conclusion of the investigation.
  


23          By -- pursuant to the rules for the
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 1   Commission, if a party files a prehearing motion,
  


 2   which these would be, then either the Chair,
  


 3   Vice-Chair, or if either of them are un -- both
  


 4   of them are unavailable, then any Commissioner
  


 5   shall rule on the motion.  So, with the Chair not
  


 6   being present, the Vice-Chair would make the
  


 7   determination on these motions and does not
  


 8   require a full Commission vote.
  


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


10          In the case of Mauricea Walker versus
  


11   Carpenter Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property
  


12   Services, Case No. HOse22100617, motion denied.
  


13          The next one is the case of Mauricea
  


14   Walker versus Carpenter/Hayes -- Hayes Gibson
  


15   Property Services, HOse22100617, motion is
  


16   denied.
  


17               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Just so I
  


18   understand, the first one was in regards to the
  


19   Complainant's sexual harassment claim, and then
  


20   the second one was the one about the criminal
  


21   perjury referral?
  


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Yes --
  


23               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.
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 1               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- that is true, and
  


 2   in both of these cases, as Deputy Director
  


 3   Fleischhacker indicated, they're still in
  


 4   process, they're still in proceedings, so this is
  


 5   a quick way to try and short-circuit the process,
  


 6   and that's why I made the recommendation to deny.
  


 7          The next section is section c, which is to
  


 8   review the AL [sic] decisions.  We have to have a
  


 9   quorum for that, and we do not.
  


10          Then Deputy Director, would you like to
  


11   cover the Decisions to be Automatically
  


12   Confirmed?
  


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah.
  


14          The cases under section d, ALJ Decisions
  


15   Automatically Confirmed, these do not require a
  


16   Commission vote, but typically the presiding
  


17   officer of the meeting will read these into the
  


18   record, just to note that they are automatically
  


19   confirmed.
  


20               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


21          So, for automatically confirming under the
  


22   Commission's order, we confirm Ray -- Richard Ray
  


23   Smith versus Ortho Indy Hospital, Case
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 1   No. PAha22050217, and also, the next case is
  


 2   Carla Mitchell versus Republic Airlines [sic],
  


 3   EMra19040198.
  


 4          That takes us to our next meeting, which
  


 5   is scheduled for the 19th of May.  Are there any
  


 6   concerns from any of the Commissioners not being
  


 7   able to attend the next meeting on the 19th?
  


 8                     (No response.)
  


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll
  


10   presume that we'll move forward with the meeting
  


11   on the 19th.
  


12          Are there any -- looking ahead, are there
  


13   any other concerns or issues, Commissioners, for
  


14   June, July or August?
  


15                     (No response.)
  


16               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll
  


17   stick with those as well.
  


18          We have no Elections, Training or Other to
  


19   preside today.
  


20          Are there any Public Announcements?
  


21                     (No response.)
  


22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, is
  


23   there -- or are there any Public Comments?
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 1               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Vice-Chair, if I
  


 2   could raise a point of order.  Typically during
  


 3   the April meeting is when the Commission would
  


 4   hold their elections for Chair and Vice-Chair,
  


 5   but given that we've not met the electronic
  


 6   participation requirements, that election would
  


 7   be tabled until the next meeting when quorum and
  


 8   electronic participation requirements are met.
  


 9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.  That's
  


10   an excellent point of order.  We'll absolutely
  


11   follow the rules.
  


12          Hearing no other Public Comments, I motion
  


13   to adjourn.
  


14                        -  -  -
             Thereupon, the proceedings of


15             April 21, 2023 were concluded
                  at 1:55 o'clock p.m.


16                        -  -  -
  


17
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 2          I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned
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 4   City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do
  


 5   hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and
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            1                                   1:30 o'clock p.m.

                                                April 21, 2023

            2                        -  -  -



            3               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  It is 1:30 on



            4   April 21st, and I call to order the Indiana Civil



            5   Rights Commission.  Just a note, by state



            6   statute, we have to have three Commissioners



            7   present.  We only have two today.  We do have



            8   Comm. Jackson, Silberberg and Blackburn on the



            9   phone, so for today's meeting, we will continue,



           10   but we will not have the ability to approve any



           11   votes today.



           12          And so, with that, I'll turn it over to



           13   Deputy Director Fleischhacker to review the



           14   agenda.



           15               MR. WILSON:  Oh, the agenda?  Oh,



           16   review of the agenda.



           17               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Oh, Michael is



           18   going to do that.



           19               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Yeah.  Just -- we'll



           20   have the approval of previous meeting minutes, we



           21   will have the Director's Report, then we would --



           22   normally we'd have Old Business.  We cannot do



           23   that, lacking a quorum, so we would move on,
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            1   then, to appointing Commissioners to



            2   Complainants' Appeals of Director's Findings, and



            3   also deal with the two motions that are also



            4   before the court, as that is something that we



            5   need either Chair or Vice-Chair approval on.  And



            6   then we cannot vote on the review of the ALJ



            7   Decisions and Orders; however, we can go ahead



            8   and read in the final orders that were



            9   automatically confirmed by the ALJ.



           10               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.



           11               MR. LOSTUTTER:  You're welcome.



           12               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  So, following the



           13   agenda, it is -- we just announced the agenda, so



           14   next would be the approval of the minutes, but



           15   because we do not have a quorum, we cannot



           16   approve the minutes, so we will defer that to our



           17   next session, and that takes us the ICRC



           18   Director's Report.



           19               MR. WILSON:  Thank you, Vice-Chair



           20   Ramos.  Thank you, Commissioners.  Again, for



           21   those on the screen, this is Greg Wilson,



           22   Executive Director, Indiana Civil Rights



           23   Commission.
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            1          Some of you hopefully got to attend the



            2   panel discussions.  I thought they were great.



            3   We did the first panel yesterday, and our next



            4   panel is on the 24th at 2:00 o'clock, and we



            5   would hope that you would join us.  We have -- I



            6   think these representatives are going to be from



            7   Ohio, and then also from IHCDA --



            8               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  (Nodded yes.)



            9               MR. WILSON:  -- and then also our own



           10   Deputy Director and General Counsel, David, will



           11   be on there as well, and so, we think it'll be a



           12   great panel discussion.  This is Fair Housing



           13   Month, and so, during Fair Housing Month we try



           14   to make sure that we put a lot of information out



           15   to further fair housing.



           16          So, coming up besides that, we are working



           17   on our conference.  That's coming up Juneteenth.



           18   It's three days.  Actually the first day is our



           19   reception, and the next two days are days of



           20   workshops.  The third day is not only the days of



           21   workshops, but our dinner as well, so we're



           22   excited about that.  Hopefully -- if you are



           23   interested in attending, please let Michael know
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            1   that you're interested in attending the



            2   conference.



            3          And we'll make sure, Michael, that we send



            4   them the link to the conference.



            5          So, Michael will send that to all of the



            6   Commissioners, the link to the conference.



            7          And then one of the big highlights of this



            8   year, we're turning 60, and I'm talking about



            9   ICRC.  We're turning 60 years old, this is our



           10   60th year, and we're going to celebrate.  We



           11   haven't got to that point yet because we're still



           12   stuck on the conference, but during the



           13   conference we'll talk about 60 years and what it



           14   means here for us here at ICRC to celebrate



           15   the 60th year.  So, just know we're turning 60,



           16   and we're not bad looking for 60.



           17               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  All right.



           18               MR. WILSON:  And then I'll let David



           19   go through kind of the --



           20               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.  Thanks.



           21               MR. WILSON:  -- the monthly report.



           22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.



           23          Just an update on some of the various
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            1   projects that we have going on that we talked



            2   about in prior meetings.  We have the Genesis



            3   phone system.  As has been reported previously,



            4   it continues to be a great tool for us to



            5   utilize, and it positions us to be better able to



            6   collect information on the work that our staff



            7   are doing.



            8          Just as a kind of comparison, as you may



            9   have seen in the At-a-Glance numbers for this



           10   past month, you know, in March 2023, we recorded



           11   979 calls that came in on our 1-800 number and



           12   the 2600, the 317-232-2600 numbers into our



           13   office during the month of March.



           14          That's compared to hand counting 155 calls



           15   a year ago in March.  So, I'm sure that we



           16   received more than 155 calls last March, but we



           17   didn't have nearly the excellent capacity that we



           18   have now to track the work that is being done, so



           19   our staff are doing a great job of working with



           20   that.



           21          We're also working with our -- with IOT



           22   and with the vendor to continue to build upon



           23   what's already in place for Genesis.  We're
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            1   looking at the feasibility of adding a directory



            2   of staff numbers, when somebody calls in and



            3   wants to get directly to some -- one person, or



            4   maybe after hours have a -- leave a voicemail for



            5   a particular individual.



            6          So, we're exploring some things like that



            7   to make the system even more user friendly, both



            8   for callers that call in, but also for our staff



            9   as well, because then that may direct some



           10   callers to a specific staff member instead of



           11   going through the queues and taking time to do



           12   all of that.



           13          Our CMS, our Case Management System, is



           14   continuing to be enhanced.  Right now we're



           15   working very hard on developing the capacity to



           16   generate Power BI reports, so -- and creating



           17   things like our monthly reports for the



           18   Commission.  Our staff are going to be able to go



           19   right into CMS and have a lot of those things



           20   automatically generated for them instead of



           21   having to do things by hand and through Excel



           22   spreadsheets, things of that nature.  So, a lot



           23   of enhancements continue to be done with that.
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            1          We're trying to fully integrate DocuSign



            2   into the Case Management System so that if we



            3   have documents that need to be sent out to



            4   complainants or respondents or whomever to be



            5   signed, then we can do that automatically through



            6   the Case Management System, they go out, and then



            7   hopefully get those signed documents returned in



            8   a very timely manner.



            9          And then right now we're in the midst of



           10   doing fair housing testing.  We have a



           11   partnership with the IHCDA, the Indiana Housing



           12   and Community Development Authority, and then



           13   also some funding from HUD through some



           14   partnership funds, to do some directed testing on



           15   properties across the State of Indiana, and



           16   testing on a couple of different things.



           17          So, right now we're in the midst of that,



           18   so as those results come in, then they may



           19   generate some Director-initiated complaints



           20   regarding if there's some significant differences



           21   in how the testers were treated versus -- you



           22   know, the protected tester versus the



           23   nonprotected tester.  So, there's some various
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            1   projects that we have going on.



            2          As far as some metrics go, you can see on



            3   the At-a-Glance that our March numbers and our



            4   year-to-date numbers are much higher than they



            5   have been in prior -- you know, just a year ago.



            6   To give you some further, I guess, examples of



            7   that, for year-to-date numbers for 2023, you can



            8   see that the number of calls that we have



            9   recorded are well over 2,000, as compared to 574



           10   calls that we had calculated March, year-to-date,



           11   in 2022.



           12          For inquiries, we're at 649 so far



           13   in 2023, as compared to 420 over the same time



           14   period in 2022.  Complaints, we're at 327 versus



           15   126 in 2022, so almost 200 more complaints in



           16   just a three-month time period.



           17          And then in settlement figures, in 2023,



           18   we've already resolved -- by just through the end



           19   of March, we have resolved cases that resulted



           20   in $372,500 in monetary relief for complainants,



           21   compared to just over 150,000 in the same time



           22   period of 2022.  So, a lot of great work that's



           23   going on from our staff.
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            1          There -- I think some of the technological



            2   improvements that we've done, and then just some



            3   staff longevity and being better positioned and



            4   more knowledgeable and skillful in how they do



            5   things has enabled us to meet the demands that



            6   are coming in.



            7          We don't file the complaints, they come in



            8   to us, but we're able to process them in a more



            9   timely manner, get them turned around and



           10   investigated in a more timely manner, and prevent



           11   them from being aged because we're moving them



           12   along quickly.  So, a lot of great work for our



           13   staff.



           14               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  That's great.  I



           15   commend the Commission for the great work that



           16   you're doing.  Certainly having stuff turnover



           17   causes all kinds of challenges, and the fact that



           18   you've been able to actually grow staff and



           19   retain is huge.  It really says a lot about the



           20   Executive Director and Deputy Director, and all



           21   of that trickles up.  So, my congrats to you.



           22          The numbers are impressive.  My background



           23   is in technology, so I'm a big plus on that, and
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            1   it does have an impact on productivity, and



            2   oftentimes they also correlate that to lack of



            3   losing people, right, because, you know,



            4   productivity.  But in this case, you know, it



            5   hasn't been that way, so congratulations --



            6               MR. WILSON:  Just to add to --



            7               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- to all.



            8               MR. WILSON:  Just to add to that, one



            9   of the things, too, I think the confidence from



           10   the public in us has increased as more -- as we



           11   get the word out about our agencies, who we are.



           12          And then the turnaround of our staff and



           13   some of the things that Dave has instituted with



           14   his staff, making sure that we stay in contact



           15   with those complainants and make sure that, you



           16   know, that communication's there.  That's very



           17   important.



           18          And then the marketing campaign that we



           19   did last year, we think that had a strong impact



           20   out in the community.  We target specific areas



           21   to market in, and some who were in some of those



           22   faraway areas where complaints might exist, and I



           23   just think that we've done a really good job of
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            1   communicating to the public.  And we have a great



            2   External Affairs team that has done a remarkable



            3   job using social media platforms, and then also



            4   working with community partners.



            5          So, I think, as an agency overall, we have



            6   a strong team.  Well, as I said, with intake I



            7   like to always lift them up, because initially



            8   when I got here, we had a very weak intake



            9   department, and we couldn't process the



           10   complainants like we could today, and that's



           11   because of Christiana's leadership and her



           12   building a strong team.



           13          Without intake, we couldn't push this



           14   stuff through, and we're getting a lot -- we're



           15   getting a lot of cases now.  We're getting quite



           16   a few cases, and so, I appreciate Christiana and



           17   her team, the intake team, for what they do.  We



           18   just have a great department.



           19          And Comm. Ramos, you've been here a long



           20   time, and especially you were here when I first



           21   started here at the agency, and so, you know



           22   what's -- and also you, Comm. Blackburn, you



           23   know, it was in rough shape, and thanks to all of
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            1   the talent that has come through, and we continue



            2   to build.  When people come, they left something



            3   to build on, and so, we're just excited about



            4   where we are today as a civil rights agency.



            5          So, as we go into the 60th year, I'm very



            6   excited about the possibilities.  Whether I'm



            7   here or not, we've built a strong platform for us



            8   to build on, so --



            9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Well, and you --



           10   again, congratulations on that, but it also



           11   translates across the country, right, because the



           12   work that you're doing, I know people are always



           13   looking at what others are doing, and the close



           14   association with the others.  And the fact that



           15   your session this summer is open nationally --



           16               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.



           17               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- that's just



           18   fantastic, so great job.



           19               MR. WILSON:  Well, Stephanie, who is



           20   our Director of External -- Internal and External



           21   Programming, one of her tasks is to work with



           22   other regional partners and those around the



           23   country.  If you look yesterday at our meeting,
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            1   we had people from Rhode Island and some other



            2   places attending our panel discussion, and we've



            3   built a good reputation throughout the region



            4   with our regional partners.



            5               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  It was a good



            6   session yesterday, and there were other



            7   Commissions that were on that as well, but it



            8   is -- and as much as you've indicated, I've been



            9   here for a while, and as has Comm. Blackburn, but



           10   it's still interesting to see the pieces that



           11   come up, that you're like, "Dang."  I don't know



           12   a better word to say but just that, but what



           13   happens in other areas, that if it continues



           14   in 2023, it's just sad.  But the good news is the



           15   work we're doing is making an impact.



           16               MR. WILSON:  Well, we've never had



           17   this kind of talent, though, at once.  We had



           18   bits and pieces of, you know, strong talent, but



           19   for the first time since I've been here, we have



           20   a strong team all across the board, and couldn't



           21   do it without this strong team.



           22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Right.



           23          Commissioners, any comments or discussion?
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            1               COMM. TOLLIVER:  I just had a couple



            2   of questions.  You said that you've got calls



            3   from all over.  Is there a heat map somewhere,



            4   just to see where calls are coming from?



            5               MR. WILSON:  Yeah -- well, you're



            6   talking about a heat map?  Not a heat map.



            7               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  We just have a



            8   list of -- based on what they've submitted as



            9   part of their registration, where they were



           10   calling in from, so we just have that data based



           11   on --



           12               MR. WILSON:  Yes.



           13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- participants



           14   from the --



           15               MR. WILSON:  Yeah, it shows where



           16   they're watching from, like some are from Ohio.



           17               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Oh, I'm sorry; the



           18   calls that come in with complaints.



           19               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Oh, you're



           20   talking about for our call system?



           21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yes.



           22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  We don't like



           23   have a heat map, but once we -- once they get
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            1   turned into like an inquiry and complaint, then



            2   we track where they're calling from, and so,



            3   we'll -- we're going to have a better



            4   understanding of kind of where regionally, and



            5   even by ZIP Code, you know, where complaints are



            6   coming in from or where complaints are not coming



            7   in from.  So, as we continue to build a more



            8   robust data set, we'll be able to kind of dig in



            9   and see some of those things, and that's going to



           10   direct some of our external outreach --



           11               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.



           12               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- you know,



           13   where do we need to go to reach people, things of



           14   that nature.  There are -- you know, we do have



           15   some limitations as far as some advertisements,



           16   because there's some local fair housing



           17   organizations in some areas, so we're -- based on



           18   our HUD agreements, we're not permitted to



           19   advertise in some of those areas, so we have to



           20   be mindful of some of those things, but other



           21   than that, we're trying to reach our full



           22   jurisdiction and get people to come to us that



           23   need to come to us.
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            1               MR. WILSON:  Yeah, we do know where



            2   regional complaints are coming from.



            3               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yeah, because that's



            4   what I was thinking, that -- I assume that



            5   Indianapolis and the doughnuts you get a lot of



            6   complaints, just because --



            7               MR. WILSON:  Yes.



            8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  -- the Commission's



            9   more well known here, but I don't know about some



           10   of those -- and I didn't even think about that.



           11   You get up to Lake County, that's probably



           12   handled by Chicago.



           13               MR. WILSON:  No.



           14               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  No, because it's



           15   still Indiana.



           16               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Oh, so there's not a



           17   club up there that says, "We want this"?



           18               MR. WILSON:  Well, they're not in



           19   Indiana.



           20               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.



           21               MR. WILSON:  Our statute, we do all



           22   of Indiana.



           23               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah.
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            1               MR. WILSON:  So, we can't -- and then



            2   the big thing is we do -- even right now, like



            3   David said, at some point we'll use the data the



            4   way that we need to, but right now, we work in



            5   various cities across the state.  With our



            6   marketing campaigns we'll do it here, we can do



            7   it here, but our goal is to partner with people,



            8   helping to push out information about ICRC.



            9               COMM. TOLLIVER:  And can I ask what



           10   the difference is between a call and an inquiry?



           11               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.  A call is



           12   just tracked -- you know, if somebody calls in to



           13   the 1-800 number or to the 2600 number, that's



           14   counted as a call.



           15          An inquiry -- and those calls can be



           16   somebody calling in to say, you know, "I have an



           17   issue with, you know, a police officer," which,



           18   you know, is not going to be our jurisdiction.



           19   We're not going to make that into an inquiry.



           20          An inquiry is more based on -- it might be



           21   something that we would have jurisdiction over,



           22   so we'd start looking into that and try to



           23   establish whether we have jurisdiction over it.
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            1   So, those inquiries, those that we do have



            2   jurisdiction over and those that we eventually



            3   get a signed complaint back from a complainant,



            4   then those are what would turn into a formalized



            5   complaint.



            6               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.  That's all.



            7   Thank you.



            8               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yep.



            9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Are there any other



           10   comments or questions from the Commissioners on



           11   the phone?



           12                     (No response.)



           13               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll



           14   move on to the next element in the agenda.  That



           15   is Old Business, and as was previously discussed,



           16   we can't do any motions because we don't have a



           17   quorum on site, so we will skip that and move to



           18   New Business.



           19          There are four cases in the new



           20   complaints, and so, I will read them in and then



           21   assign them accordingly.  So, the first one is



           22   Ajahnique Evans versus Pedcor Affordable



           23   Investments, LLC, HOra22100558.  I will assign
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            1   that to myself.



            2          The next case is Shantana Maxwell versus



            3   Greystone Property Management Corporation,



            4   HOha22110651, and I'll assign that to



            5   Comm. Tolliver.



            6          That's okay?



            7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Yes.  Thank you.



            8               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  The next case is



            9   Scheree Robinson versus Heart of Cardon, LLC.



           10   The Case Number is EMra22090502, and I will



           11   assign that to Comm. Blackburn.



           12          And the next case is Marc Lampert versus



           13   Southwest Dubois County School Corporation,



           14   EMha22110671, and I will assign that to



           15   Commissioner -- or Vice -- or Chair Slash.  I'm



           16   sure she'll be back, so I will assign that to



           17   Chair Slash.



           18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  One thing to note



           19   about this gentleman, he was making a request to



           20   be able to make an oral presentation before the



           21   Commission.



           22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Okay.  Well, that's



           23   a good one for Chair Slash.
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            1                      (Laughter.)



            2               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Okay.



            3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  She'll be very



            4   thankful to you, I'm sure.



            5               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Next, we move to



            6   Motions and Other Filings, and so, these are



            7   filings that -- Deputy Director, would you like



            8   to discuss these?



            9               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure, Vice-Chair.



           10   Thank you.



           11          Both of these motions that have been



           12   filed, in the Mauricea Walker v. Carpenter



           13   Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property Services, these



           14   are motions to dismiss, and then there's also one



           15   that includes a motion to refer the matter to the



           16   Department of Justice for a criminal perjury



           17   prosecution.  Both of the -- or this matter is



           18   currently with an investigator for an



           19   investigation, and the Respondent in this matter



           20   has filed these motions to request the Commission



           21   to dismiss these -- this complaint prior to the



           22   conclusion of the investigation.



           23          By -- pursuant to the rules for the
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            1   Commission, if a party files a prehearing motion,



            2   which these would be, then either the Chair,



            3   Vice-Chair, or if either of them are un -- both



            4   of them are unavailable, then any Commissioner



            5   shall rule on the motion.  So, with the Chair not



            6   being present, the Vice-Chair would make the



            7   determination on these motions and does not



            8   require a full Commission vote.



            9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.



           10          In the case of Mauricea Walker versus



           11   Carpenter Apartments/Hayes Gibson Property



           12   Services, Case No. HOse22100617, motion denied.



           13          The next one is the case of Mauricea



           14   Walker versus Carpenter/Hayes -- Hayes Gibson



           15   Property Services, HOse22100617, motion is



           16   denied.



           17               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Just so I



           18   understand, the first one was in regards to the



           19   Complainant's sexual harassment claim, and then



           20   the second one was the one about the criminal



           21   perjury referral?



           22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Yes --



           23               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Okay.
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            1               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  -- that is true, and



            2   in both of these cases, as Deputy Director



            3   Fleischhacker indicated, they're still in



            4   process, they're still in proceedings, so this is



            5   a quick way to try and short-circuit the process,



            6   and that's why I made the recommendation to deny.



            7          The next section is section c, which is to



            8   review the AL [sic] decisions.  We have to have a



            9   quorum for that, and we do not.



           10          Then Deputy Director, would you like to



           11   cover the Decisions to be Automatically



           12   Confirmed?



           13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah.



           14          The cases under section d, ALJ Decisions



           15   Automatically Confirmed, these do not require a



           16   Commission vote, but typically the presiding



           17   officer of the meeting will read these into the



           18   record, just to note that they are automatically



           19   confirmed.



           20               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.



           21          So, for automatically confirming under the



           22   Commission's order, we confirm Ray -- Richard Ray



           23   Smith versus Ortho Indy Hospital, Case
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            1   No. PAha22050217, and also, the next case is



            2   Carla Mitchell versus Republic Airlines [sic],



            3   EMra19040198.



            4          That takes us to our next meeting, which



            5   is scheduled for the 19th of May.  Are there any



            6   concerns from any of the Commissioners not being



            7   able to attend the next meeting on the 19th?



            8                     (No response.)



            9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll



           10   presume that we'll move forward with the meeting



           11   on the 19th.



           12          Are there any -- looking ahead, are there



           13   any other concerns or issues, Commissioners, for



           14   June, July or August?



           15                     (No response.)



           16               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, we'll



           17   stick with those as well.



           18          We have no Elections, Training or Other to



           19   preside today.



           20          Are there any Public Announcements?



           21                     (No response.)



           22               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Hearing none, is



           23   there -- or are there any Public Comments?
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            1               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Vice-Chair, if I



            2   could raise a point of order.  Typically during



            3   the April meeting is when the Commission would



            4   hold their elections for Chair and Vice-Chair,



            5   but given that we've not met the electronic



            6   participation requirements, that election would



            7   be tabled until the next meeting when quorum and



            8   electronic participation requirements are met.



            9               CHAIRMAN RAMOS:  Thank you.  That's



           10   an excellent point of order.  We'll absolutely



           11   follow the rules.



           12          Hearing no other Public Comments, I motion



           13   to adjourn.



           14                        -  -  -

                          Thereupon, the proceedings of

           15             April 21, 2023 were concluded

                               at 1:55 o'clock p.m.

           16                        -  -  -
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